
 

                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR MEETING OF APRIL 20, 2011    Page 1 of 2 
 

 
P.O. BOX 675 ▪ 61750 CHOLLITA ROAD ▪ JOSHUA TREE ▪ CALIFORNIA 92252 

TELEPHONE (760) 366-8438    FAX (760) 366-9528    E-MAIL  jbwd@jbwd.com 
 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

WEDNESDAY APRIL 20, 2011  7:00 PM 

61750 CHOLLITA ROAD, JOSHUA TREE, CA  92252 
 

AGENDA 
 

 1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

 2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

 3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 

 4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

 5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 

Pg  1-3 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. Approve the Minutes of the April 6, 2011 Regular Meeting  
 

Pg  4-10 7. DEPOSITS REQUIRED FOR NEW ACCOUNTS AND ACCOUNTS THAT HAVE BEEN 

TURNED OFF FOR NON-PAYMENT 

Recommend that the board determine the amount of deposits based on “green, yellow or red” 

scores from a credit-rating agency; adopt resolution 11-868 with the appropriate deposit amount. 
 

Pg. 11-39 8. UNITED STATES GEOLOGICAL SURVEY (USGS) STUDY CONTINUATION AND 

STATUS REPORT 

Recommend that the Board approve a “No Cost Extension Joint Funding Agreement” with 

USGS to complete the report of the ground water recharge project and the Transport Solute 

Model septic study.  Funding for this was previously approved by the Board.   
 

Pg. 40-41 9. CRISIS COMMUNICATIONS AND DISASTER PREPAREDNESS TRAINING 

Recommend that the Board receive the information and consider attending the training. 
 

Pg  42-60 10. DIRECTOR LUHRS INFORMATION REQUESTS 

Recommend that the Board receive the report and determine whether staff should create 

requested information. 

 

Pg  61-63 11. PROJECT PRIORITY LIST 
 

 12. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

mailto:jbwd@jbwd.com


 

                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR MEETING OF APRIL 20, 2011    Page 2 of 2 
 

 13. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
 

 

Pg    64 

14. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS 

1. PRESIDENT LUCKMAN: REIMBURSED EXPENSES FOR BOARD MEMBERS 

Recommend that the Board direct staff to propose revisions of the Administrative 

Code to designate specific conferences or meetings that qualify for daily pay and 

reimbursement of expenses. 
 

2. AD HOC GENERAL MANAGER PERFORMANCE “FACILITATED REVIEW 

PROCESS:  VICE PRESIDENT REYNOLDS AND DIRECTOR LONG 
 

3. AD HOC PIPELINE REPLACEMENT FUNDING COMMITTEE:   DIRECTOR 

LUHRS AND DIRECTOR WILSON 
 

 

 

15. CLOSED SESSION  

1.  At this time, the Board will go into Closed Session pursuant to Government Code Section 

54956.8 to confer with & instruct the District's Real Property Negotiator, Joe Guzzetta, as to 

terms & conditions of the potential purchase of land for a reservoir site. 

It is anticipated that negotiations will be with the record owners of the specific sites/parcels 

under consideration which are as follows: 0607-041-06; 0600-271-09; 0602-011-10;  

0602-011-16; 0602-011-03; 0588-131-73; 0589-192-21; 0588-121-22; 0588-121-68 
 

2.  At this time, the Board will go into Closed Session to confer with Legal Counsel on existing 

litigation pursuant to subdivision (a) of Government Code Section 54956.9.  (Re Joshua Basin 

Water District v. Robert Ellis, San Bernardino Superior Court - Joshua Tree District, Case No. 

CIVMS 900168). 
 

3.  At this time, the Board will go into Closed Session to confer with Legal Counsel on existing 

litigation pursuant to subdivision (a) of Government Code Section 54956.9.  (Re Joshua Basin 

Water District v. Ironhead LLC a California Limited Liability Company, Praxedes Beard and 

Does 1 – 10 inclusive, San Bernardino Superior Court - Joshua Tree District, Case No. CIVMS 

1100087). 
 

 16. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS 
 

Pg  65-70 17. ACQUISITION OF PROPERTIES FOR FUTURE RESERVOIR SITES 

Recommend that the Board confirm its goal of acquiring properties for future reservoir sites and 

authorize staff to retain CE Prime Inc. at a cost not to exceed $80,075 or $ $11,055 per site. 
 

 18. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 

The Board of Directors reserves the right to take action on items reserved for discussion only.  
 

INFORMATION 

During either "Public Comment” Item, please use the podium microphone.  State your name and have your 

information prepared and be ready to provide your comments to the Board.  The District is interested and appreciates 

your comments.  A 3-minute time limit may be imposed.  Thank you. 

Any person with a disability who requires accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should telephone 

Joshua Basin Water District at (760) 366-8438, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to make a request for a 

disability-related modification or accommodation. 
 

Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board of Directors after distribution of the agenda packet 

are available for public inspection in the District’s office located at 61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, California 

92252 during normal business hours. 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF APRIL 6, 2011                         1                

 
 
 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
Minutes of the 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
April 6, 2011 

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

  7:00 PM  

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

  

3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: Bill Long 
Mickey Luckman 
Mike Luhrs 
Mike Reynolds 
Gary Wilson 

Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 

 
STAFF PRESENT: Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 

Terry Spurrier, HR/Administrative Services Supervisor 
 

CONSULTANTS PRESENT: Gil Granito, District Counsel 
Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant 

 
GUESTS 8 

 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
MSC Long/Wilson 5/0 to approve the Agenda for the April 6, 2011 Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors. 
  
5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Cynthia Leahy commented on her experience when the District solicited for bids from landscape contractors in 

2008.  Gary Lovelace of Joshua Tree commented on statements made by Director Luhrs in the past. 
Kathleen Radnich, JBWD Public Outreach Consultant, invited the community to the anniversary of the 
Water Wise Demonstration Garden on April 16th where there will be an art show and activities. 

 
6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
Director Luhrs requested that the Draft Minutes of the March 16th Regular Meeting be revised with the deletion 

of President Luckman’s reference to the ACWA conference under Item 17. 
MSC Reynolds/Long 5/0 to approve the Minutes of the March 16, 2011 Regular Meeting with the revision as 

noted; and to approve the Financial Report for February 2011. 
 
7. REPORT ON UPCOMING JBWD/AWAC FREE TOILET GIVEAWAY 
General Manager Guzzetta reported that Mojave Water Agency has provided a grant that will supply 300 high 

efficiency toilets to JBWD customers. JBWD customers can apply online to qualify to exchange toilets 
that use more than 1.6 gallons per flush for high efficiency toilets. 

8. CONSIDER ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 11-868 REGARDING GUARANTEE DEPOSITS 
GM Guzzetta reported on the proposed policy that would provide for new account deposits of zero, one 

hundred dollars, or two hundred dollars, based on “green, yellow, or red” scores from a credit-rating 
agency. Board and staff discussion ensued. Barbara Delph of Joshua Tree commented that many people 
might not be able to afford a higher deposit at this time. Discussion continued. It was suggested that the 

Page 1 of 70



 

REGULAR MEETING OF APRIL 6, 2011                         2                

District’s Citizens Advisory Committee review the subject and make a recommendation to the Board. 
MSC Long/Wilson 5/0 to table the item; to refer the item to the Citizens Advisory Committee to review and 

make recommendation to the Board, and that the Board will revisit the subject at a future date. 
 
9. WATER ACCOUNT ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 
GM Guzzetta reported that the District is considering some revisions to the Water Account Assistance 

Program, which is in place to offer assistance to customers who are victims of unusual or extraordinary 
circumstances that result in high water bills. Staff has requested feedback from the Board regarding 
guidelines for the program. President Luckman noted that this program is different from a service that 
pays bills for low-income customers. Vice-President Reynolds suggested that a customer should be 
allowed assistance only one time. The consensus of the Board was that the program should continue. 
District Counsel Gil Granito stated he will review the legal aspects of any proposed changes.  

 
10. PROJECT PRIORITY LIST 
GM Guzzetta reported that a public hearing for the Urban Water Management Plan update will be scheduled 

for June 15th; the Citizens Advisory Committee will review the drafted chapters.  

11. PUBLIC COMMENT 
None. 
 
12. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
GM Guzzetta reminded the Board that volunteers are needed to help with the toilet exchange program on May 

7th and May 21st. Director Wilson asked whether rates charged by Canyon Automotive are the same 
now as when the District contracted with them; GM Guzzetta replied that rates have not increased. 

 
13. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS 
Director Luhrs asked if GM Guzzetta and President Luckman attended ACWA conference in Washington DC; 

GM Guzzetta answered they did not, they met with legislators. Director Luhrs asked several questions 
related to his prior request for documents. GM Guzzetta commented that, according to Board policy, 
staff provides document copies to Directors who request information, and if information requested by a 
Director requires staff to research and compile a report, Board authorization is needed. District Counsel 
Gil Granito stated that Director Luhrs is correct in that Directors should be provided information as 
requested and that GM Guzzetta is also correct in requesting Board authorization for information 
requests that cause extraordinary work effort from staff. President Luckman stated that Director Luhrs’ 
request can be put on the agenda for the next Board meeting in two weeks. 

Director Wilson commented on statements made by the GM Guzzetta regarding attending meetings. 
President Luckman commented that she and GM Guzzetta had gone to Washington DC to attend the ACWA 

Conference but after arriving, she decided the time would be better spent in other meetings that were 
already arranged. Director Wilson stated his opinion that Board approval was not needed for the 
ACWA Conference but was needed for other travel. 

 
14. CLOSED SESSION 
1.  At this time, the Board will go into Closed Session pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 to 
confer with & instruct the District's Real Property Negotiator, Joe Guzzetta, as to terms & conditions of the 
potential purchase of land for a reservoir site. 
It is anticipated that negotiations will be with the record owners of the specific sites/parcels under 
consideration which are as follows: 0607-041-06; 0600-271-09; 0602-011-10;  
0602-011-16; 0602-011-03; 0588-131-73; 0589-192-21; 0588-121-22; 0588-121-68 
 

2.  At this time, the Board will go into Closed Session to confer with Legal Counsel on existing litigation 
pursuant to subdivision (a) of Government Code Section 54956.9.  (Re Joshua Basin Water District v. Robert 

Page 2 of 70



 

REGULAR MEETING OF APRIL 6, 2011                         3                

Ellis, San Bernardino Superior Court - Joshua Tree District, Case No. CIVMS 900168). 
3.  At this time, the Board will go into Closed Session to confer with Legal Counsel on existing litigation 
pursuant to subdivision (a) of Government Code Section 54956.9.  (Re Joshua Basin Water District v. Ironhead 
LLC a California Limited Liability Company, Praxedes Beard and Does 1 – 10 inclusive, San Bernardino 
Superior Court - Joshua Tree District, Case No. CIVMS 1100087). 
 
The Board went to closed session at: 8:18 pm and returned at 8:58 pm. 
 
15. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS 
District Counsel Granito reported that Closed Session Item 2 was heard first. Director Luhrs recused himself, 

not due to any financial relationship with Mr. Ellis but because he had had several conversations with 
Robert Ellis prior to becoming a board member. 

The Board met in Closed Session with Joe Currie of CE Prime who is assisting in the negotiations, and who 
will present a proposal at the next Board meeting; no reportable action was taken during discussion of 
item 3. 

No reportable action was taken for item 1. 
 
20. ADJOURNMENT 9:00 PM 
MSC Long/Reynolds 5/0 to adjourn the April 6, 2011 Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors. 

Respectfully submitted; 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for Wednesday April 20, 2011 at 7:00 pm. 
 

Page 3 of 70



Page 4 of 70



Page 5 of 70



Page 6 of 70



Page 7 of 70



Page 8 of 70



Page 9 of 70



Page 10 of 70



Page 11 of 70



Page 12 of 70



Page 13 of 70



Page 14 of 70



Page 15 of 70



Page 16 of 70



Page 17 of 70



Page 18 of 70



Page 19 of 70



Page 20 of 70



Page 21 of 70



Page 22 of 70



Page 23 of 70



Page 24 of 70



Page 25 of 70



Page 26 of 70



Page 27 of 70



Page 28 of 70



Page 29 of 70



Page 30 of 70



Page 31 of 70



Page 32 of 70



Page 33 of 70



Page 34 of 70



Page 35 of 70



Page 36 of 70



Page 37 of 70



Page 38 of 70



Page 39 of 70



Page 40 of 70



Page 41 of 70



Page 42 of 70



Page 43 of 70



Page 44 of 70



Page 45 of 70



Page 46 of 70



Page 47 of 70



Page 48 of 70



Page 49 of 70



Page 50 of 70



Page 51 of 70



Page 52 of 70



Page 53 of 70



Page 54 of 70



Page 55 of 70



Page 56 of 70



Page 57 of 70



Page 58 of 70



Page 59 of 70



Page 60 of 70



Updated    4/15/2011                  Page 1 

Project Priority List 
 

PROJECTS NEARING COMPLETION 
Personnel Policy Manual (Joe Guzzetta) 

This will be considered during labor negotiations this year. 

 

PROJECTS UNDERWAY 
Election to Charge Private Wells for Replacement Water 

Attorney is reviewing election options. 

Update Urban Water Management Plan (Joe Guzzetta – Year 1) 

Contract was awarded to Kennedy Jenks at the August 4
th

 2010 Board meeting. State law  requires this 

update to be completed by July 1, 2011.  Three chapters have been drafted. 

Property Acquisition for Future Water Facilities (Joe Guzzetta – Year 1) 

The Master Plan identifies 27 to 37 million gallons of additional reservoir storage that will be needed 

to operate the District in the future.  Staff proposes to begin acquiring the land before the most ideal 

parcels are developed, especially for reservoirs which are constrained by altitude, proximity to the 

existing system, and other considerations. Potential sites are under evaluation. .  The Board’s next 

agenda will have a proposed contract with our property consultants, CE Prime, to provide services to 

acquire the proposed parcels. 

Recharge Basin & Pipeline Project  (Joe Guzzetta) 
Property has been purchased.  Monitoring well has been installed. Final design contract was awarded 

to Krieger & Stewart Engineers at August 4
th

 Board meeting and is 40% complete. Construction is 

contingent on Proposition 84 and other funding. 

Final Phase of 4” Pipe Replacement  (Director Luhrs, Director Wilson, Joe Guzzetta) 

Priorities have been established. 15,000’ of pipeline has been designed with 60,000’ yet to be 

designed.  Completion design and construction of this project is pending a financial strategy to be 

considered by the Board. Referred to Board Committee (Luhrs/Wilson) at the January 19, 2011  

Regular Board Meeting. 

Record Archival System  (Susan Greer – Year 1) 

Staff had second presentation. This will eventually enable the District to maintain more electronic files 

for easier access and less physical storage. 

Hauling Station Coin/Card Reader – Under Study (Jim Corbin – Year 1) 

Staff is considering a system to enable selling of water at the hauling station.  

 

PROJECTS COMPLETED 
Field Laptop Computers (Keith Faul – Year 1) 

Laptops are installed 

Well #16   (Randy Little)   

The well has been completed and is permitted by Department of Health Services. 

Hot Master + Backup Computer – SCADA (Randy Little – Year 1) 

Complete. This computer provides backup to the Telemetry System.   

LAFCO Mandatory Municipal Services Review (Joe Guzzetta – Year 1) 

State law requires LAFCO to conduct a review of each agency’s boundaries and services (at agency 

cost) to determine the appropriateness and to recommend any changes. LAFCO will conduct a hearing 

on January 19. 

 

PROJECTS NOT BEGUN:  YEAR 1 
Develop/Update Board Policies and Procedures (Susan Greer) 

Page 61 of 70



Updated    4/15/2011                  Page 2 

Update 3030 Plan (Joe Guzzetta) 

Staff intends to solicit proposals for this project. 

Fire Cabinet for Maps (Keith Faul – Year 1) 

Custom Software Programming  (Susan Greer/Keith Faul – Year 1) 

Adds lacking features to the District’s main software program, such as reports or functions, and 

specific items not yet identified. 

Conduct Fee Study/Update Rate Study (Susan Greer – Year 1)  

Miscellaneous fees are being developed based upon resources used; staff, vehicle, equipment, etc.  

A rate study update will determine what rate changes are needed in the next several years to maintain  

services. A proposal is under consideration by the Board. 

GIS Server for Field Login (Keith Faul – Year 1) 

Field crew will receive laptop computers to be used in the field for more accuracy and efficiency.  This 

server is needed in order to connect to the GIS system. 

Storage Bays for Rock, Sand, Asphalt (Jim Corbin – Year 1) 

This will allow for more orderly storage of rock, sand, and asphalt which are used regularly in normal 

district operations. 

Pressure Reducing Station Replace/Refurbishment (Randy Little – Years 1-2) 

Assess and overhaul or replace PRV/PSV/Altitude valve over a three year period.  Twelve in use, one 

completed.   

 

PROJECTS NOT BEGUN:  YEAR 2 
Carpet for Office (Terry Spurrier – Year 2) 

D31 New Booster Pumps and Housing (Randy Little – Year 2) 

The pumps at this booster station operate at a low efficiency rate such that it is timely to replace them. 

Chlorine Analyzers With Telemetry Programming (Randy Little – Year 2) 

Install analyzers to monitor chlorine residual at up to four remote sites. 

Flow Meter Refurbishment (Randy Little – Year 2) 

Four remaining flow meters (2 this year) with digital displays and telemetry plus DTS programming. 

Asphalt Installation Equipment – Under Study (Jim Corbin – Year 2) 

Pipe Holder (Jim Corbin – Year 2) 

The District stores small amounts of plastic pipe for repairs.  There is nowhere out of the sun to do so.  

Over time the pipe can deteriorate when exposed to the sun.  This will provide shade. 

Altitude Valves at C2B, SCADA Electric Controls C1 and C3 Tanks (Randy Little – Year 2) 

These valves will prevent the overflowing of the C Zone tanks. 

Space Needs Assessment for Office Building Addition (Joe Guzzetta – Year 2 (per Board deferral) 

A needs assessment will determine how much space the District needs for an Emergency Operations 

Center in order to apply for grant construction funds. This item was discussed at the August 4, 2010 

Board meeting, and deferred. 

Relocate C2 Tank & J Booster (Randy Little – Years 2-3) 

This project has been designed and would relocate a 500,000 gallon tank from the C Zone where it is 

no longer needed to the H Zone where it is severely needed.  The project was deferred pending 

funding. 

System Reliability Upgrade for Hospital and County Complex; C, B and D3 zones (Jim Corbin – 

Years 2-3) 

This entire area has one single water supply feed.  It does not have a redundant water supply for 

emergency situations.  Staff has proposed a secondary “emergency” source. 

 

 

 

Page 62 of 70



Updated    4/15/2011                  Page 3 

PROJECTS NOT BEGUN:  YEAR 3 
Security (Motion Sensors) at Shop and Well 10 (Randy Little – Year 3) 

This would provide security to an expanded area at the shop.   

 

 

EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PROJECTS:  (Postponed to determine funding 

potential) 
Well 10 and 14 Soft Start Bypass – Generator Controls  (Randy Little – Year 1)  

The new 600 KW generators need this equipment in order to operate properly at the two largest 

producing wells. 

Earthquake Shutoff Valves for Three Tanks (Randy Little – Year 1) 

Currently, if a pipe from a reservoir is broken the entire reservoir can be drained unless a valve is 

manually located and shut off. This will provide automatic shutoff in case of earthquake to the two 

major C tanks and the B tank serving the hospital. 

Transfer Switches at Remaining Booster Sites (Randy Little – Year 1) 

The switches are needed in order to be able to use the emergency generators at the pump stations. 

Large Meter Bypasses (Jim Corbin – Year 1) 

Currently, in order to test or remove a large meter, the service needs to be disconnected.  This is a 

serious problem for some large meters such as the hospital.  The bypass will allow the meter to be 

removed and replaced without discontinuing service. 

Emergency Supplies (Rick Cook – Years 1-2) 

These include food, water, cots, etc. for serious emergencies for employees. 

 

Page 63 of 70



Page 64 of 70



Page 65 of 70



 

 

REAL PROPERTY SERVICES CIVIL ENGINEERING 

 
March 24, 2011 

 
 

Mr. Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
Joshua Basin Water District 
61750 Chollita Road 
P.O. Box 675 
Joshua Tree, CA 92252 
 

 
Re: Right of Way Acquisition Services for the Reservoir Sites 

 
 

Dear Mr. Guzzetta: 
 
CE Prime is prepared to provide land acquisition services for the nine properties listed in the 
2009 Reservoir Property Acquisition Survey Report completed for Joshua Basin Water District 
(JBWD) by Dudek and from the findings from our recent discussions with you and your staff 
regarding the same properties located in Joshua Tree, California. Our approach to the project, 
acquisition plan, schedule and cost summary are as follows: 
 

Project Approach 
 
CE Prime understands that JBWD has a need to increase reservoir capacity within various 
pressure zones throughout the District. Although building has slowed due to the current 
economic conditions, it makes strategic sense for JBWD to purchase properties now needed for 
future capacity while property values are low.  
 
Our approach to this acquisition is based on the CE Prime team’s familiarity with the 
requirements of this project and a thorough process that has been applied on numerous 
acquisitions. This approach will be governed by our Right-of-Way Acquisition Plan. This plan will 
guide the CE Prime team and JBWD through the various phases of the acquisition process.  The 
plan will be a foundation for negotiations, property owner coordination, preparing information 
letters and offer letters, and issuing certifications. This approach contains a clear process for 
maintaining records of negotiations and all acquisition activities will be documented and 
contained in a monthly report.  This report will be delivered to JBWD to keep them informed of 
the status of the process.  
 

Right of Way Acquisition Plan 
 
The following plan makes the assumption that condemnation will not be required for any of the 
properties. JBWD does have the power of eminent domain and could use it on this project. If all 
other avenues of approach to acquiring any parcel are exhausted and unsuccessful, we will 
discuss with JBWD the potential for using condemnation law and detail a plan to move forward.  
 

Page 66 of 70



 

 

REAL PROPERTY SERVICES CIVIL ENGINEERING 

Task 1 – Research 
We must verify the exact ownership of the properties in question. Information already gathered 
indicates private ownership for most of the properties. CE Prime will verify all research done to 
date to assure accurate ownership information and attain an accurate history of the property 
rights in order to have complete information for use during the acquisition process.  
 
Task 2 – Initial Interviews 
CE Prime will provide a Letter of Introduction to each property owner. The letter will come from 
JBWD and let the owners know that Mr. Joe Currie with CE Prime is speaking on their behalf. 
We will then set up individual meetings to discuss the acquisition and land rights issues with the 
owners.  The quickest and most efficient way to handle the land transfer is to have the owners 
agree to the acquisition through negotiated settlement.  
 
The CE Prime team will then conduct an on-site inspection of the subject properties with the 
Appraiser. It is understood that the first option is to acquire the land through negotiation 
providing fair market value for each property. However, it is wise to have a current appraisal 
completed in case there is legal action by any party. Having an appraisal also gives an 
indication of what value the property has to all parties.  
 
Mr. Currie will be responsible for answering all questions and will provide written material. He 
will also leave names and telephone numbers of contact personnel available to the owners for 
future questions and discussions.  
 
Task 3 – Appraisals/Just Compensation Review 
CE Prime will instigate the appraisals required for the proposed land acquisition.  CE Prime will 
utilize the services of Ted Hendrickson Appraisal Company, Inc.  
 
In order to properly value the properties the following steps will be completed as part of the 
appraisal process: send a letter from the appraiser to the property owners and inspect the 
properties as they choose to meet with the appraiser; research and develop an opinion of each 
property’s highest and best private use as though vacant and available for development for 
each property; research market data that is consistent with a conclusion on highest and best 
use; after confirming the transaction details of the comparable sales with buyers, sellers, and 
brokers, value the properties based on their value as potential building sites for typical 
buyer/owners. 
 
Task 4 –Survey Work 
CE Prime will coordinate and manage the survey work performed by Right of Way Engineering, 
Inc. Our in-house staff will be utilized for the maintaining control over the schedule, and to 
ensure quality control. CE Prime will provide land research, written legal descriptions of the 
acquired land, and maps locating the properties. The plats, legal descriptions and dedication will 
be signed and stamped by our survey consultant. 
 
There are a couple of options regarding survey that should be discussed. In order to simply 
purchase the properties in this area, it is important to understand exactly where they are 
located. Initial research has indicated that these properties have few, if any, field monuments 
accurately locating property corners.  However, it is possible using research techniques to 
assure the properties are very close to the assumed locations. This method would save the cost 
of an initial field survey and prevent duplicate field work once the project sites are developed 

Page 67 of 70



 

 

REAL PROPERTY SERVICES CIVIL ENGINEERING 

and exact boundaries located and marked. Our estimate allows for the project sites to be 
located to an acceptable accuracy without the cost of field work.  
 
Task 5 – Escrow and Title Insurance 
Escrow services and title insurance will be provided by Lawyer’s Title, Inc. We have history with 
this company and have experienced a high attention to detail and schedule and believe JBWD 
will be best served by using Lawyer’s Title, Inc. for this project. Final title insurance is based 
upon property value. An estimate of $1000 for each property has been used and could changed 
based on value. 
 
Task 6 – Dedication Documents 
Using the information gathered from the appraisals and legal descriptions, and based on the 
agreements with the owners, Grant Deed documents will be generated by CE Prime for review 
by the participants. A Final Draft will then be prepared for signatures and notarized. Each 
property will be a separate record document and be transferred. The time required to obtain 
signatures will depend on this agreement, but should take no longer than 60 days. As 
signatures are obtained, the documents will be submitted to you for acceptance. The 
documents will then be returned to CE Prime with any disbursements needed for recordation, 
and then forwarded to Title/Escrow for closing and Title Policies. 
 
Coordination with JBWD will occur at least on a monthly basis, providing written and verbal 
information in regular updates. Milestone approvals and critical decisions will be decided with 
your input at special meetings. Managing these separate activities will keep the project schedule 
at the top of the priority list. 
 

Schedule 
 
CE Prime is prepared to begin work immediately upon receipt of the notice to proceed and we 
have the staff immediately available to commit to this project. For illustration purposes, we 
have assumed that we will receive the notice to proceed by April 18, 2011. CE Prime commits to 
meeting the schedule outlined in Table 1, provided that the owners are agreeable to the 
meetings and able to meet within the scheduled timeframe.  
 

TABLE 1. PRELIMINARY SCHEDULE 

Task Date 
CE Prime receives signed contract/Notice to Proceed April 18, 2011 
Letter of Introduction sent  April 21, 2011 
CE Prime to schedule meetings with owners May 2, 2011 – May 20, 2011 
Survey May 30, 2011 – June 24, 2011 
Appraisal July 1, 2011 – August 31, 2011 
Offer letters and follow up meetings with property owners September 8, 2011 – 

September 22, 2011 
Escrow and final recording procedures September 29, 2011 -  October 

27, 2011 

 
 Page 68 of 70



 

 

REAL PROPERTY SERVICES CIVIL ENGINEERING 

Cost Summary 
 
All work will be billed on a time-and-materials basis in accordance with our 2011 Standard 
Schedule of Charges, a copy of which is attached to this proposal. The CE Prime 2011 Standard 
Schedule of Charges will remain in effect for the entire duration of the project as described 
above. Direct costs are billed as a straight through cost with no markup. Mileage will be 
charged once staff are within the JBWD service boundaries. 
 
The following costs are per parcel with the total for all work at the end of the section.  
 
Acquisition Negotiations and Coordination $5,265 
Survey  $1,440 
Appraisal $2,800 
Title, Escrow and Insurance $1,550 
Total per parcel $11,055 
 
It is assumed that survey, appraisal and at least half of the acquisition time will be required for 
the nine parcels to allow for the potential of utilizing the two alternate sites. These two parcels 
will not require the title/escrow services. The time required could be less and the fee shown is a 
not-to-exceed maximum. Final fees will be dependant on services required to attain the goal of 
acquiring seven parcels. 
 
Not-to-Exceed Fee for Acquisition Services $80,075 

Project Management 
 
Mr. Joe Currie will serve as the land agent and project manager for the project, responsible for 
completing the acquisition services and contact with all owners.  Mr. Fred Clark will serve as 
Project Principal, and as such will provide overall Quality Assurance and Control. CE Prime looks 
forward to your favorable review of our proposed work plan, schedule, and cost. If any 
questions should arise during review of this scope of work, please do not hesitate to contact me 
at 760.710.7528 or joe.currie@ceprimeinc.com. 
 
   
Sincerely, 
CE Prime, Inc. 
 
 
 
Joe Currie 
Supervisor, Real Property Services 
 
 
Encl.:   2011 Standard Schedule of Charges 
 
 
cc: Fred Clark, General Manager, CE Prime 
  

Page 69 of 70



 

 

REAL PROPERTY SERVICES SERVING CLIENTS NATIONWIDE 

2055 Corte del Nogal-  Carlsbad, CA 92011  -  Tel: (760) 930-9966  -  Fax: (760) 930-9974                                         www.ceprimeinc.com 

 
 

2011 RATES for  
 

REAL PROPERTY SERVICES / UTILITY COORDINATION 
 

CALIFORNIA FEE SCHEDULE 
 

Effective July 1, 2010 
 

 
 
Real Property Services 
 
Manager, Real Property Services  150.00
Senior Right of Way Agent  135.00
Right of Way Agent  125.00
Project Coordinator  110.00
 
 
Expert witness investigation and court preparation time will be charged at twice the rate 
listed. 
 
Travel mileage is charged at $.55 per mile, or current IRS Standard Mileage Rate, from 
JBWD service boundaries. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 70 of 70




